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�1st Circuit upholds forfeiture of entire amount of laundered money, rather than net profit, from substitute assets. (170) Defen�dants participated in a large organization that laundered money for Colombian drug traffick�ers. During a 15-month period, conspir�ators wired over $136 million to foreign bank accounts controlled by the Colombians. The dis�trict court ordered the forfeiture of $136 million under one of RICO's forfeiture provisions, holding several conspirators liable for the full $136 million, and others liable for lesser amounts. Because the $136 million had been wired out of the country, each defendant was liable to pay the forfeited amount out of substitute assets. The First Circuit agreed that the $136 million wired to the Colombians constituted racketeering "proceeds" forfeitable by the persons who handled or controlled these funds before they were wired. Moreover, a defendant's forfeiture extends to funds obtained by other members of the conspiracy, provided such funds were reasonably foreseeable to that defendant. Such a forfeiture did not constitute an excessive fine. It is quite rational to hold a defendant liable for an amount of money foreseeably laundered by himself and his own co-conspirators. U.S. v. Hurley, 63 F.3d 1 (1st Cir. 1995).�xe "U.S. v. Hurley, 63 F.3d 1 (1st Cir. 1995)."�





1st Circuit approves forfeiture of all funds laundered rather than organization's profit. (170) Defendant ran an organization that laundered over $100,000,000 in drug money during a five year period. He argued that the proceeds subject to RICO forfeiture should not include all the funds laundered by his organization, but only the organization's profit. The First Circuit, without discussion, upheld the forfeiture of all of the funds laundered by the organization. The appellate court agreed with the reasoning in the district court's opinion. U.S. v. Saccoccia, 58 F.3d 754 (1st Cir. 1995).





2nd Circuit reverses forfeiture that was based on attempted failure to file currency report. (170) Police detained claimant at a local airport carrying $500,000 in cash. He told authorities that he was transferring the money to Latvia to avoid the 1% exchange fee charged by European banks. He planned to take a flight from the local airport to New York, and then fly to Latvia. On previous trips he had shown customs letters from his bank stating that the bank had completed currency transaction reports. However, he never completed an International Transportation of Currency or Monetary Instrument Report ("CMIR"). The district court found the money forfeitable under 31 U.S.C. §5324(b)(1) based on an "attempted" failure to file the CMIR, even though defendant had no duty to file the CMIR until he got to New York and tried to take the money out of the country. The Second Circuit reversed, holding that the only "attempt" prohibited by §5324(b)(1) is an attempt to cause a person to fail to file a report. Section 5317(c) does not create any additional basis for forfeiture, and does not authorize forfeiture for a person's own "attempt" to fail to file a report. U.S. v. $500,000 in United States Currency, 62 F.3d 59 (2d Cir. 1995).�xe "U.S. v. $500,000 in United States Currency, 62 F.3d 59 (2d Cir. 1995)."�





2nd Circuit holds that government waived right to assert a "traceable proceeds" theory as to entire bank account. (170) The govern�ment seized a bank's interbank account. In a civil forfeiture motion under 18 U.S.C. §981, the government alleged that Colom�bian drug cartels used money orders to launder money through the interbank account. Although only about $1.7 million of the funds came from money or�ders, the government sought forfeiture of the entire $7 million in the account on the grounds that the non-laundered funds became "involved" in money laundering by providing cover for the deposits at�tributed to money orders. When the district court rejected this claim, the government moved for recon�sideration, claiming that it had established probable cause to seize the entire account on a "traceable pro�ceeds" theory. The district court held that the gov�ernment had waived its right to assert a "traceable proceeds" theory, and the 2nd Circuit agreed. It was not until several weeks after the hearing on the bank's motion that the government asserted it was proceeding on a traceable proceeds theory. The gov�ernment raised this theory too late to be considered by the court. Marine Midland Bank v. U.S., 11 F.3d 1119 (2d Cir. 1993).�xe "Marine Midland Bank v. U.S., 11 F.3d 1119 (2d Cir. 1993)."�





2nd Circuit says affidavit established prob�able cause to seize funds in interbank account. (170) The government seized a bank's interbank account. The warrant was supported by the affidavit of a postal inspector which described in detail the postal service's investi�gation of the drug cartel's use of money orders to launder narcotics proceeds through the inter�bank account. The 2nd Circuit held that the affidavit established probable cause to seize the funds in the interbank accounts that were attributable to money orders. The affidavit was not the functional equivalent of a drug courier profile. It was the result of a 13-month investigation into the Colombian drug cartel's laundering scheme. The affidavit described a specific modus operandi, and was not a mere profile compiled from the general behavior of drug cartels. However, the court remanded for a determin�ation of whether 18 U.S.C. §984 required the release of the funds derived from money orders. Marine Midland Bank v. U.S., 11 F.3d 1119 (2d Cir. 1993).�xe "Marine Midland Bank v. U.S., 11 F.3d 1119 (2d Cir. 1993)."�





2nd Circuit upholds release of nonforfeitable funds prior to trial. (170) The government seized a bank's interbank account which contained about $7 million. About $1.7 million was attributable to de�posits of money orders which the government alleged were used by Colombian drug cartels to launder money through the interbank account. The district court rejected the government's claim that the entire account was forfeitable, and ordered the government to return to the bank the funds that were not at�tributable to money orders. The 2nd Circuit upheld the release of funds prior to the forfeiture trial. There was no support for the government's con�tention that it was entitled to retain the illegally seized funds until a forfeiture trial. Although it would be senseless to order the release of funds if the government could immediately commence a forfei�ture proceeding and establish probable cause, there was no indication that it could. Marine Midland Bank v. U.S., 11 F.3d 1119 (2d Cir. 1993).�xe "Marine Midland Bank v. U.S., 11 F.3d 1119 (2d Cir. 1993)."�





2nd Circuit remands to determine proba�ble cause to forfeit bank accounts. (170) In a civil forfeiture ac�tion against real property and bank accounts, the district court ordered the forfeiture of the real prop�erty, but found that the government had not traced the money in the bank account to drug traffick�ing. The 2nd Cir�cuit remanded because it was unclear whether the court had found (a) no probable cause to forfeit the accounts, or (b) that claimants had shown that the ac�counts did not contain drug proceeds. As the trial began, the judge announced that the proba�ble cause requirement had been met by the gov�ernment. The finding was not limited to the prop�erty, so the government presented no fur�ther evi�dence. The court's later finding was contrary to this initial ruling. The case was remanded to determine whether proba�ble cause ex�isted for the forfeiture of the ac�counts. The court noted that on remand, prob�able cause could be based on circum�stantial evidence and the funds need not be linked to specific drug transactions. U.S. v. All Right, Title, and Interest in Real Property and Appurte�nances Thereto Known as 785 St. Nicholas Ave., 983 F.2d 396 (2d Cir. 1993).�xe "U.S. v. All Right, Title, and Interest in Real Property and Appurte�nances Thereto Known as 785 St. Nicholas Ave., 983 F.2d 396 (2d Cir. 1993)."�





2nd Circuit holds that funds being elec�tronically transferred are seizable. (170) The government seized funds being electroni�cally transferred (EFTs) by a Colombian drug cartel from United States banks to Colombian and Panamanian banks. The government sought for�feiture of the funds as proceeds of drug traf�ficking and money laundering activity. Claim�ants argued that EFTs were not seizable properties under the civil forfeiture statute because they were merely electronic communi�cations. They claimed that an EFT was not a direct transfer of funds, but rather a series of contractual obligations to pay, and that the inter�mediary banks were merely messengers who never held the funds. The 2nd Circuit rejected this characterization, and held that an EFT, when it takes the form of a bank credit at an inter�mediary bank, is clearly a seizable res under the forfeiture statutes. On receipt of EFTs from the originating banks, the intermediary banks possess the funds, in the form of bank credits, for some period of time before trans�ferring them on to the destination banks. Under Circuit precedent, a bank credit is a seizable res. U.S. v. Daccarett, 6 F.3d 37 (2d Cir. 1993). �xe "U.S. v. Daccarett, 6 F.3d 37 (2d Cir. 1993). "�





2nd Circuit holds presence in passenger boarding area triggers currency re�porting re�quirements. X-ray of bag is sufficient prob�able cause to search. (170) Claimant was moving through the x-ray machine in the over�seas pas�sen�ger board�ing area of Kennedy Air�port when $147,690 was dis�covered in his carry-on bag. The money was forfeited and the 2nd Circuit affirmed. As�suming that the claimant had stand�ing to challenge the forfei�ture, he was suf�ficiently close to actual board�ing to trig�ger the currency reporting re�quirements. The x-ray im�age was sufficient to justify a search of the bag. The money was therefore properly forfeited. Mercado v. U.S. Customs Service, 873 F.2d 641 (2d Cir. 1989).�xe "Mercado v. U.S. Customs Service, 873 F.2d 641 (2d Cir. 1989)."�





3rd Circuit holds laundered money commingled with untainted money may be directly forfeited. (170) Defendant was convic�ted of fraud, money laundering, and racketeering charges, and was ordered to forfeit substantially all his assets, including a brokerage account into which he had transferred $3 million in fraudulently obtained funds. Citing U.S. v. Voigt, 89 F.3d 1050 (3d Cir 1996), the district court held that this account was not forfeitable directly, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §982(a)(1), as property derived from or traceable to money laundering because the account also contained $160,000 in untainted funds. Instead, the trial judge ordered the money in the account forfeited as substitute assets under 18 U.S.C. §982(b)(1). On appeal, the Third Circuit conceded that Voigt appeared to preclude direct forfeiture even of readily traceable laundered funds once com�mingled with any sum of untainted money. However, the court categorized that section of Voigt as dictum, and found that Voigt applies only to cases in which tainted and untainted funds cannot be readily separated. As there was no such difficulty in this case, the circuit court found the $3 million in the account directly forfeitable, less amounts used to pay attorneys fees. U.S. v. Stewart, 185 F.3d 112 (3d Cir. 1999).�xe "U.S. v. Stewart, 185 F.3d 112 (3d Cir. 1999)."�





3rd Circuit agrees that corpus of money laundered is gross receipts where defendant also committed underlying offense. (170) Defendant was convicted of mail fraud and money laundering, and was ordered to forfeit over $2 million. One count charged defendant with laundering $125,000 on October 4, 1988. The most recent amendment to the forfeiture statute became effective on November 18, 1988. Defendant argued that this forfeiture violated the ex post facto clause. The Third Circuit found no ex post facto violation. Before November 1988, 18 U.S.C. §982 permitted the forfeiture of "gross receipts." Where the defendant committed the specified unlawful activity as well as the money laundering violation, the corpus of the money was the "gross receipts" received by defendant and was thus forfeitable. Here, defendant committed the mail fraud and also laundered money derived from the fraud. He obtained the total $125,000 as the "gross receipts" of the money laundering offense. There was no need to find that defendant paid himself a commission for laundering his own money. U.S. v. Sokolow, 91 F.3d 396 (3d Cir. 1996).�xe "U.S. v. Sokolow, 91 F.3d 396 (3d Cir. 1996)."�





4th Circuit finds adequate nexus between credit card fraud and inventory of defen�dant’s stores. (170) Two clothing merchants were convicted of credit card fraud and money laundering for orchestrating a scheme in which credit card thieves used stolen cards at defendants’ stores with defendants’ connivance. The jury also returned a verdict of criminal forfeiture against the inventories of the two stores, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §982(a)(1), as property “involved in” the offense of money laundering. Defendants argued that there was an insufficient nexus between the inventories and the scheme, and that the jury was improperly instructed that forfeiture should be ordered if they found the inventories “facilitated” money laundering. The Fourth Circuit held that, although §982(a)(1) does not include the term “facilitate,” the phrase “property involved in” does embrace property that “facilitates” illegal money laundering. The court held that property “need not have been ‘indispensable’ to the commission of the crime so long as it played a significant role in the prohibited activity.” Here, defendants used the inventory to reward the credit card thieves and store employees for their roles in the crime, and the stores “provided a façade of respectability and lawfulness to the conduct.” The forfeiture verdict was proper. U.S. v. Matai, 199 WL 61913 (4th Cir. 1999) (table) (unpublished).�xe "U.S. v. Matai, 199 WL 61913 (4th Cir. 1999) (table) (unpublished)."�





4th Circuit reverses summary judgment where claimants denied knowledge of CTR requirement. (170) Claimants, husband and wife, owned a nightclub. They also made dozens of cash deposits at multiple branches of banks at times and in ways suggesting an attempt to avoid the requirement of filing a currency transaction report (CTR). The government sought forfeiture of the house purchased with the funds derived from these deposits on the ground that the house was bought with the proceeds of a structuring transaction. The district court granted summary judgment for the government, finding that it had established probable cause and the claimants had failed to rebut that showing. The Fourth Circuit reversed. It did not dispute the government’s showing of probable cause. However, the court emphasized that proof of knowledge of the reporting requirement is essential to proof of the crime of structuring, and thus to the forfeitability of structured funds, and that both claimants took the stand and denied knowledge. Despite the trial court’s conclusion that claimants’ denial was “incredible,” the circuit court felt that determination of claimant’s credibility on the issue was a jury question. U.S. v. Leak, 123 F.3d 787 (4th Cir. 1997).�xe "U.S. v. Leak, 123 F.3d 787 (4th Cir. 1997)."�





4th Circuit affirms summary judgment where claimants ad�mitted they were aware of currency re�porting re�quirements. (170) Claimants appealed the district court's grant of sum�mary judgment for the gov�ernment in a civil forfeiture ac�tion. The district court de�termined as a matter of law that claimants intention�ally structured a series of currency de�posits into their bank account for the pur�pose of evading federal re�porting require�ments. The 4th Circuit af�firmed the sum�mary judgment. Even if claimants were un�aware that structuring itself was illegal, the only scienter re�quirement is that the violating party have knowledge of the reporting re�quirements and act to avoid them. Here, claimants con�ceded that a bank teller told them of the re�porting require�ments. Their belief that the re�quirements were permissive, rather than mandatory, was belied by the convoluted course of their deposit transac�tions. It was in�conceivable that they believed the requirements were of no more impor�tance than that. U.S. v. Wollman, 945 F.2d 79 (4th Cir. 1991).�xe "U.S. v. Wollman, 945 F.2d 79 (4th Cir. 1991)."�





4th Circuit holds that 18 U.S.C. §545 does not require government to prove intent to defraud the United States of "revenues."(170) In Ahmad’s criminal appeal, the Fourth Circuit affirmed his customs fraud and related conspiracy convictions, but reversed his convictions for structuring deposits to evade reporting requirements and vacated the criminal forfeiture because the government failed to prove that Ahmad "willfully" violated the anti-structuring statute. 31 U.S.C. §5324(a)(3). Ahmad then filed a motion for return of $186,587.42 in seized funds. The government filed a civil forfeiture action against the funds. The district court entered judgment in favor of Ahmad, finding no statutory basis for the forfeiture and concluded that, in any event, the forfeiture would constitute an excessive fine. The court rejected the government’s argument that the $101,587.42 in currency was forfeitable under 18 U.S.C. §545 as a substitute asset for the value of surgical equipment imported through fraud. The Fourth Circuit reversed, holding that the plain language of §545 does not require the government to prove that it suffered a loss of revenue. Therefore, Ahmad’s conviction for conspiracy to violate §542 satisfied the government’s burden of demonstrating probable cause that a violation of §545 had occurred. United States v. Ahmad, 213 F.3d 805 (4th Cir. 2000).





5th Circuit says facilitating real property is forfeit�able in money laundering statute. (170) Defendants were convicted of bribery, fraud, and money laundering in connection with the construction of a private Louisiana prison. The jury returned a verdict finding the prison building itself was forfeitable as property “involved in” money laundering, or traceable to such property. 18 U.S.C. §982(a)(1). Defen�dants contended that for�feiture of facilitating property is not permis�sible under the money laundering statute unless the facilitation involves commingling of legitimate and tainted funds as a method of concealing “dirty money,” a situation not presented here. The Fifth Circuit disagreed, finding that the building was forfeitable as facilitating property “because of its substantial nexus to the crimes.” U.S. v. Wyly, 193 F.3d 289 (5th Cir. 1999) (table) (unpublished).�xe "U.S. v. Wyly, 193 F.3d 289 (5th Cir. 1999) (table) (unpublished)."�





7th Circuit upholds forfeiture of entire bank account in money laundering case. (170) The government seized the contents of a bank account into which fraud victims were induced to transfer money. During forfeiture proceedings pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §981, claimant urged that, even if some of the funds in the account were forfeitable, the govern�ment could not take the entire contents of the account. The government did not proceed on a facilitation theory (i.e., the theory that all funds in the account were forfeitable regardless of source because the account was used to carry out a fraud), but rather argued that all fund in the account were forfeitable because they were the proceeds of criminal activity. The Seventh Circuit sustained forfeiture of the entire account. It emphasized that the amount of fraudulently obtained money deposited into the account exceeded its balance at the time of seizure. Moreover, claimant made no effort to show that any portion of the money on deposit came from an untainted source. U.S. v. United States Currency Deposited in Account No. 1115000763247 for Active Trade Company, 176 F.3d 941 (7th Cir. 1999).�xe "U.S. v. United States Currency Deposited in Account No. 1115000763247 for Active Trade Company, 176 F.3d 941 (7th Cir. 1999)."�


 


7th Circuit rules that property may be seized pretrial in money laundering case not involving drugs. (170) A defendant indicted for fraud and money laundering in connection with his operation of hospice facilities contested the post-indictment, pretrial restrain�ing order against $20 million of his assets. He noted that the money laundering forfeiture statute, 18 U.S.C. §982(b)(1), provides that property seized under the authority of §982(a)(1) “shall be governed” by the provisions of 21 U.S.C. §853, which pertains to property involved in drug offenses. Section 853 sets out the procedures for obtaining a pretrial restraining order upon which the government relied in this case. Thus, argued defendant, only property that was connected both with money laundering and drug crimes could be restrained pretrial. The Seventh Circuit rejected this argument, finding that the cross-reference in the money laundering statute to the procedures in §853 of the drug statutes was merely a shorthand way of incorporating the procedures set out in detail in the drug statute. U.S. v. Kirschenbaum, 156 F.3d 784 (7th Cir. 1998).�xe "U.S. v. Kirschenbaum, 156 F.3d 784 (7th Cir. 1998)."�





7th Circuit sustains criminal forfeiture of fraud�ulently obtained funds. (170) Defendant, the county clerk and recorder of Monroe County, Illinois, embezzled county funds and was con�victed of mail fraud, 18 U.S.C. §1341, money laundering, 18 U.S.C. §1956(a)(1)(B), and theft from an entity receiving federal funds, 18 U.S.C. §666, as well as a criminal forfeiture count, 18 U.S.C. §982. To determine the forfeiture amount, the trial court added up all the money illegally taken by defendant in connection with the counts of conviction for a total of $57,412. Defendant protested that the government was entitled only to the $23,000 he was convicted of laundering in the five money laundering counts. The Seventh Circuit upheld the forfeiture order, noting that the evidence showed $94,561 in defendant’s account had been stolen. The order forfeiting a lesser amount was “well within acceptable parameters.” U.S. v. Trost, 152 F.3d 715 (7th Cir. 1998).�xe "U.S. v. Trost, 152 F.3d 715 (7th Cir. 1998)."�





7th Circuit refuses to allocate burden of proof differently for forfeitures based on currency reporting violations. (170) Gen�erally, in a civil forfeiture case, the govern�ment's initial burden is to establish probable cause to believe that the property is subject to forfeiture. After probable cause has been demonstrated, the burden shifts to the claimant to prove by a preponderance of the evidence that the property is not subject to forfeiture. The 7th Circuit rejected defen�dant's invitation to change this allocation of the burden of proof for forfeitures based on currency reporting violations. The statute applicable to such forfeitures clearly provides for this allocation. The court rejected defen�dant's claim that the punitive nature of civil forfeitures renders it more akin to a criminal than a civil proceeding. The reporting re�quirements are rational in light of the perva�sive underground economy that avoids taxes, and forfeiture for violations of the currency reporting act is a reasonable method of en�suring enforcement of the currency declara�tion requirements. U.S. v. $94,000 in United States Currency, 2 F.3d 778 (7th Cir. 1993). �xe "U.S. v. $94,000 in United States Currency, 2 F.3d 778 (7th Cir. 1993). "�





8th Circuit deducts money returned to victim, but forfeits increased value of property bought with proceeds. (170) Defendant was convicted of money laundering under 18 U.S.C. §1957, mail fraud, and criminal forfeiture under 18 U.S.C. §982(a)(1) when he misappropriated the proceeds of a charity concert. The Eighth Circuit found that forfeiture under §982(a)(1) was proper despite defendant’s complaint that this was “fundamentally a mail fraud case.” The court also rejected defendant’s contention that he should receive credit for value he added to a mobile home purchased with laundered funds. On the other hand, the court agreed that defendant should receive credit for money he misappropriated but returned to the charity concert accounts. U.S. v. Hawkey, 148 F.3d 920 (8th Cir. 1998).�xe "U.S. v. Hawkey, 148 F.3d 920 (8th Cir. 1998)."�





9th Circuit dismisses forfeiture counts based on improper currency reporting convictions. (170) Defendants were convicted of structuring monetary transactions to evade currency transaction reporting (CTR) requirements. The Ninth Circuit reversed the CTR convictions because the government failed to show that defendants knew structuring was illegal. Conse�quently, the appellate court ordered that the forfeiture counts that rested on the CTR con�victions also be dismissed. U.S. v. Skelton, 176 F.3d 486 (9th Cir. 1999) (table) (unpublished).�xe "U.S. v. Skelton, 176 F.3d 486 (9th Cir. 1999) (table) (unpublished)."�





9th Circuit finds no inconsistency between forfeiture and acquittal on some counts in laundering case. (170) Defendant was acquitted of filing a false tax return and making false statements about his ownership of several pawnshops. However, he was convicted of bankruptcy fraud for making the same false statements, and of laundering the profits of the pawnshops. In addition, the jury found the pawnshops criminally forfeitable as instrumen�talities of money laundering. Defendant argued that the not guilty verdicts on the false return and false statements charges demonstrated that the jury believed his claim that he bought the shops from his savings, and therefore the shops were not instrumentalities of money laundering. The Ninth Circuit disagreed. The fact that the jury convicted defendant of bankruptcy fraud and money laundering refuted his argument. Said the court, “although the verdicts may be inconsis�tent, that does not mean the jury was not convinced.” U.S. v. Ladum, 141 F.3d 1328 (9th Cir. 1998).�xe "U.S. v. Ladum, 141 F.3d 1328 (9th Cir. 1998)."� 





9th Circuit finds money laundering conviction did not bar claim that money was obtained legally. (170) Defendant was convicted of money laundering in a criminal trial at which the jury instructions (properly) permitted a verdict of guilty if the source of funds was an account in which tainted funds were commingled with other funds. See U.S. v. Garcia, 37 F.3d 1359 (9th Cir, 1994). When the government sought civil forfeiture of real estate purchased with money from the bank account at issue in the criminal case, the district court found that the defendant was estopped by the criminal verdict from contesting the illegal source of the money in the account. The Ninth Circuit reversed. It found the jury verdict established, at most, that some but not all of the funds in the account were criminally derived. Consequently, it was error not to allow claimant to present evidence to show the legitimate source of some of the money. In addition, because the district court improperly relied on the prior conviction and did not allow development of other evidence, there was insufficient showing of probable cause to support the forfeiture. The case was remanded for further evidence. U.S. v. Real Property Located at 22 Santa Barbara Drive, 121 F.3d 719 (9th Cir. 1997).�xe "U.S. v. Real Property Located at 22 Santa Barbara Drive, 121 F.3d 719 (9th Cir. 1997)."�





9th Circuit rejects retroactivity for statute permitting forfeiture of bank account for laundered funds. (170) In September, 1992, the government seized $814,254.76 from an inter�bank account. That account had been used to launder money, but none of the seized cash was actually traceable to money laundering. A month later, in October, 1992, Congress enacted 18 U.S.C. §984, permitting the civil forfeiture of money in a bank account even when the money seized is not directly traceable to the laundered funds, so long as the account prev�iously contained the funds involved in or trace�able to the illegal activity. However, the Ninth Circuit held that the new statute was not retroactive, and therefore did not apply to the present seizure. Accordingly, the forfeiture of the funds in this case was reversed. U.S. v. $814,254.76, in U.S. Currency, 51 F.3d 207 (9th Cir. 1995).�xe "U.S. v. $814,254.76, in U.S. Currency, 51 F.3d 207 (9th Cir. 1995)."� 


9th Circuit says statute permitting civil forfeiture of money not directly traceable to laundered funds is prospective. (170) In September, 1992, the government seized $814,254.76 from an interbank account. That account had been used to launder money, but none of the seized cash was actually traceable to money laundering. In October, 1992, Congress enacted 18 U.S.C. §984, permitting the civil forfeiture of money in a bank account even when the money seized is not directly traceable to the laundered funds, so long as the account previously contained the funds involved in or traceable to the illegal activity. The Ninth Circuit held that 18 U.S.C. §1984 does not apply to acts committed before its passage. By permitting civil forfeiture of money not directly traceable to laundered funds, it increased a party's liability for past conduct. Since there was no clear congressional intent that the statute operate retroactively, it did not do so. Accordingly, the forfeiture of funds in this case was reversed. U.S. v. $814,254.76, in U.S. Currency, 51 F.3d 207 (9th Cir. 1995).�xe "U.S. v. $814,254.76, in U.S. Currency, 51 F.3d 207 (9th Cir. 1995)."�





9th Circuit holds that failure to report cur�rency before entering jetway for internation�al flight violated forfei�ture statute. (170) Regu�lations require that travel�ers leaving the coun�try with over $5,000 (now $10,000) cash must file a currency report at the "time of depar�ture." Violation "turns on a rea�sonable prox�imity both in space and time to the physical point of departure coupled with a manifest in�tention to leave the country." Here, the claimant had checked her baggage, passed through secu�rity, presented her boarding pass, and was at the jetway to her flight. Forfeiture was proper. U.S. v. $122,043.00 in U.S. Cur�rency (Meixner), 792 F.2d 1470 (9th Cir. 1986).�xe "U.S. v. $122,043.00 in U.S. Cur�rency (Meixner), 792 F.2d 1470 (9th Cir. 1986)."�





10th Circuit says jury instructions need not define how forfeitable property was “involved in” money laundering. (170) Defendant, a CPA and tax preparer, was convicted of laundering money for clients engaged in drug trafficking. The jury also found the funds in one of defendant’s bank accounts criminally forfeitable because they were “involved in” the crime of money laundering in violation of 18 U.S.C. §982(a)(1). The Tenth Circuit held that the trial court did not err by refusing to define for the jury the statutory phrase “involved in.” The court observed that it is “preferable that a jury be instructed on what constitutes ‘involved in’ and/or ‘traceable to’ [a money laundering offense],” but the failure to do so here was not plain error. The court nonetheless reversed the forfeiture verdict because of discrepancies between the indictment, the special verdict form, and the evidence adduced at trial about which of two accounts the forfeiture was intended to reach. U.S. v. Bornfield, 145 F.3d 1123 (10th Cir. 1998).�xe "U.S. v. Bornfield, 145 F.3d 1123 (10th Cir. 1998)."�





11th Circuit affirms refusal to grant summary judg�ment to forfeit cashier's checks drawn on a Swiss bank account by drug fugitive. (170) The government sought to forfeit $200,000 in cashier's checks drawn on a Swiss bank account by a fugitive convicted of narcotics of�fenses. The fugitive's sis�ters had attempted to deposit the checks in a Panamanian bank but were re�fused and subsequently expelled from that country. The checks were seized when the sisters attempted to pass through customs in Miami without declaring the checks. The 11th Circuit affirmed the district court's order find�ing that the government had failed to show sufficient proba�ble cause to justify granting a motion for sum�mary judgment. The govern�ment's affidavit failed to show that a "substantial connection exists between the 20 cashiers checks at issue and the exchange of a controlled sub�stance." U.S. v. Twenty (20) Cashier's Checks, 897 F.2d 1567 (11th Cir. 1990).�xe "U.S. v. Twenty (20) Cashier's Checks, 897 F.2d 1567 (11th Cir. 1990)."�





Alabama District Court says real property needn’t be “instrumental” to facilitate drug activity. (170) The government sought civil forfeiture of two parcels of real estate on which crack cocaine sales occurred or were arranged. Claimant argued there was an inadequate nexus between the property and drug activity. She contended that the property “was not instrumental in the sale nor did [it] serve to further the illegal sale.” The district court held that the government’s proof established probable cause for forfeiture. The property “need not be ‘instrumental’ in the facilitation of the illegal drug activity." A "substantial connection" is sufficiently established "when the government shows that illegal transactions occurred on real property.” U.S. v. Two Parcels of Real Property Located at 101 North Liberty Street, 80 F.Supp.2d 1298 (M.D. Ala. 2000).�xe "U.S. v. Two Parcels of Real Property Located at 101 North Liberty Street, 80 F.Supp.2d 1298 (M.D. Ala. 2000)."�





California District Court finds money laundering forfeiture statute of limitations tolled by filing complaint. (170) Title 18, U.S.C. §981 makes forfeitable money traceable to certain unlawful activities; however, courts found that the government may forfeit only an amount not exceeding the “lowest intermediate balance” between the date of deposit of the unlawful funds and the date of the seizure. To close this “loophole,” Congress enacted 18 U.S.C. §984, so that the government could “obtain title through civil forfeiture to the identical property found in the place where the ‘guilty’ property had been kept.” However, §984 contains a special shortened one-year statute of limitations on such forfeitures in order to maintain a nexus between the tainted funds and the funds seized. Here, the government filed a complaint within the one-year statute of limitations, but did not effect service of process until after the statute had elapsed. The district court found that Congress intended that the statute could be tolled either by filing a complaint or by actual seizure of funds through service of legal process. Thus, the government complied with the statute of limitations. U.S. v. Funds Representing the Proceeds of Drug Trafficking in the Amount of $75,868.62, 52 F.Supp.2d 1160 (C.D. Cal. 1999).�xe "U.S. v. Funds Representing the Proceeds of Drug Trafficking in the Amount of $75,868.62, 52 F.Supp.2d 1160 (C.D. Cal. 1999)."�





Illinois District Court finds no need to show source of seized funds if tainted deposits exceed account balance at time of seizure. (170) The government sought forfeiture of roughly $300,000 from a bank account that had been used to launder sums larger than that figure. Relying on U.S. v. $448,342.85, 969 F.2d 474, 476-77 (7th Cir. 1992), claimant contended that the government was entitled only to funds used in or directly traceable to “specified unlawful activity,” and that it failed to show the entire $300,000 was tainted. The district court noted that 18 U.S.C. §984 was enacted in 1992 to alleviate the tracing difficulties highlighted in $448,342.85. Section 984(b)(1)(B) states that in cases involving cash, bank accounts, and the like, “it shall not be a defense that the property involved in the offense has been removed and replaced by identical property.” Thus, where the government has shown that the amount of tainted money passing through an account exceeds the balance on hand on the date of forfeiture, specific tracing will be unnecessary and forfeiture will be ordered. U.S. v. United States Currency Deposited in Account No. 1115000763247, 1998 WL 299429 (N.D. Ill. 1998) (not reported in F.Supp.).�xe "U.S. v. United States Currency Deposited in Account No. 1115000763247, 1998 WL 299429 (N.D. Ill. 1998) (not reported in F.Supp.)"�





Illinois District Court rules property forfeit�able only to extent tainted funds “benefited” the property. (170) Defendant was charged with Medicare fraud and money laundering, and the indictment sought criminal forfeiture of his house and cars. Defendant argued that these assets should be forfeitable only to the extent that criminally tainted funds were used to pur�chase or maintain them. The district court agreed. Relying on U.S. v. Federal Security, 1998 WL 324842 (N.D. Ill. June 9, 1998), the court rejected the govern�ment’s contention that property traceable to property involved in money laundering is forfeitable in its entirety. Rather, such property should be forfeitable only to the extent that the defendant “used tainted funds to benefit those assets.” U.S. v. Pergler, 1998 WL 887113 (N.D. Ill. 1998) (not reported in F.Supp.).�xe "U.S. v. Pergler, 1998 WL 887113 (N.D. Ill. 1998) (not reported in F.Supp.)."�





Illinois District Court discusses excessive fines claim in currency transaction case. (170) Claimant withdrew and deposited money in various bank accounts in amounts less than $10,000. The government alleged these transactions were structured to avoid cur�rency transaction reporting (CTR) requirements, but did not claim the money was derived from an illegal source, and sought civil forfeiture of the funds under 18 U.S.C. §981(a)(1)(A). Claimant sought dismissal under Rule 12(b)(6), Fed. R. Civ. P. The court found that the government sufficiently alleged knowledge of CTR require�ments and an intent to avoid them by citing the statute and averring that claimant structured his trans�actions to evade CTR requirements. The court also held that the government need not allege in its pleadings that structured funds are criminally derived in order to defeat a claim that their forfeiture is an excessive fine. The court deferred ruling on whether forfeiture of legiti�mately obtained structured funds violates the Excessive Fines Clause until the government shows that the funds were indeed involved in structured trans�actions, and the claimant “subsequently establishes the legal nature of his funds.” U.S. v. Funds in the Amount of $170,926.00, 985 F.Supp. 810 (N.D. Ill. 1997).�xe "U.S. v. Funds in the Amount of $170,926.00, 985 F.Supp. 810 (N.D. Ill. 1997)."�





Louisiana District Court hints banks must inform customers of undercover operation. (170) This civil forfeiture action grew out of a U.S. Customs undercover operation in which agents set up a phony currency transfer business with a bank account through which the agents would transfer funds given them by alleged drug traffickers. Several third-party plaintiffs to whom wire transfers were made (and who therefore suffered seizure of the transferred funds) claimed that the bank used by the government owed a duty of due diligence to determine the possible illegal source of the funds being transferred, as well a duty to disclose to bank customers the fact that their money might be subject to forfeiture. Although the opinion is unclear on the point, plaintiffs appear to be seeking a requirement that the bank disclose to customers the existence of a government undercover operation using its accounts. The district court did not rule definitively on this claim, but refused to dismiss it under Fed. R. Civ. P. 12(b)(6). U.S. v. All Funds on Deposit, 1998 WL 32762 (E.D. La. 1998) (not reported in F.Supp.).�xe "U.S. v. All Funds on Deposit, 1998 WL 32762 (E.D. La. 1998) (not reported in F.Supp.)."�





New York District Court expresses concerns about plea bargaining and coercion and the stress of pretrial incarceration, in sentencing and money laundering forfeiture order. (170) Defendant was charged with using her jewelry businesses in Panama to launder $10 million of drug proceeds. Lengthy pretrial proceedings ensued, largely caused by the government’s failure to produce huge volume of documents seized by the government of Panama; successive grants of bail overturned on appeal; and a strong government opposition to pay defense counsel from her assets, all of which had been seized. Defendant entered a plea agreement to be incarcerated for 33 – 41 months and to give up all her assets. The E.D.N.Y. district court was doubtful about defendant’s capacity to sign the plea agreement and a possible conflict of interest of defense counsel in recommending a plea. A psychiatric evaluation was ordered and additional counsel was appointed. The E.D.N.Y. district court then accepted her plea but departed downward in her sentence. The 25-page opinion contains extensive analysis of conflicts of interest, plea bargaining and coercion, competency to plead, effect of the sentencing guidelines, and the stress of pretrial incarceration. U.S. v. Joyeros, S.A., 2002 WL 999939 (E.D.N.Y 2002).





New York District Court holds that “specified unlawful activity” under CAFRA includes unlawful currency transfers to Iran. (170) The government filed a civil action under CAFRA seeking the forfeiture of $3 million in a New York bank account held in the name of a currency exchange company. The government alleged that the company undertook on behalf of some of its customers to transfer to Iran sums equivalent to the $3 million sought by the forfeiture action, in violation of Executive Orders promulgated under the International Emergency Economic Powers Act. The currency exchange company moved to dismiss the complaint and vacate the attachment, but it did not contest that its transfers to Iran were unlawful. The company argued that the transfers did not warrant forfeiture of the funds in the bank account, because those funds were neither the proceeds of the illegal transfers nor the commingled equivalents. The S.D.N.Y. district court denied the motion to dismiss, holding that property is forfeitable that “constitutes or is derived from proceeds traceable to” a specified unlawful activity, which under CAFRA includes the unlawful currency transfers to Iran alleged by the government. U.S. v. All Funds on Deposit in United Bank of Switzerland, 188 F.Supp.2d 407 (S.D.N.Y. 2002). 





New York District Court rejects excessive fines challenge to currency reporting forfeiture. (170) Claimant was stopped after examination of his baggage on an outbound international Swissair flight from New York revealed two handguns. In conversations with Customs agents and on a Customs form, claimant asserted that he possessed approximately $2,000, but a search of his person and luggage turned up $97,253.00. The government sought forfeiture of the money under 31 U.S.C. §5316. Relying on U.S. v. Bajakajian, 118 S.Ct. 2028 (1998), claimant asserted that forfeiture of the entire sum constituted an excessive fine in violation of the Eighth Amendment. The district court found: (1) Claimant was a large-scale heroin trafficker convicted in the District of Maryland; (2) The cash was “directly traceable to [claimant’s] heroin trafficking”; and (3) Neither of claimant’s two conflicting stories about where the money came from was credible. The court held that forfeiture of the proceeds of crime is not punitive and cannot be an excessive fine. Even if this forfeiture were deemed punitive, it was not “grossly disproportional” under Bajakajian. U.S. v. United States Currency in the Sum of $97,253.00, 2000 WL 194683 (E.D. N.Y. 2000) (not reported in F.Supp.).


�xe "U.S. v. United States Currency in the Sum of $97,253.00, 2000 WL 194683 (E.D. N.Y. 2000) (not reported in F.Supp.)."�


New York District Court finds “interbank account” exception to money laundering forfeiture not applicable. (170) The money laundering forfeiture statute exempts from forfeiture funds “not traceable directly to the offense that is the basis for the forfeiture” where such funds are “held in an interbank account, unless the financial institution holding the account knowingly engaged in the offense.” 18 U.S.C. §984(d)(1). An “interbank account” is defined as “an account held by one financial institution at another financial institution primarily for the purpose of facilitating customer transactions.” 18 U.S.C. §984(d)(2). In this case, the government filed a civil forfeiture against funds that had been maintained in accounts created by Merrill Lynch in a U.S. bank. The district court held that the interbank account exception did not apply because: (1) the accounts were held in claimant’s name, not that of Merrill Lynch, and (2) the money in the accounts was alleged to be directly traceable to the underlying fraud. U.S. v. Approximately $25,829,681.80 in Funds, 1999 WL 1080370 (S.D. N.Y. 1999) (not reported in F.Supp.).�xe "U.S. v. Approximately $25,829,681.80 in Funds, 1999 WL 1080370 (S.D. N.Y. 1999) (not reported in F.Supp.)."�





New York District Court denies jurisdictional challenge to forfeiture of internationally transferred funds. (170) Money alleged to be involved in an international fraud and money laundering scheme was wire transferred from abroad to a Merrill Lynch account in New York, then transferred again to an account in London. At the behest of the victims, who had become suspicious about their investment, Merrill Lynch com�menced an interpleader action and deposited the money with the clerk of the U.S. District Court in New York. The government filed a civil forfeiture action against the funds, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §981. Claimant, the alleged perpetrator of the fraud, argued that the court lacked jurisdiction because applying the forfeiture statute here would “impermissibly give it extraterritorial effect.” The trial court disagreed. The predicate offenses for the for�feiture were wire fraud and money laundering. Juris�diction is proper in wire fraud if “telecommunications of the United States” are used in furtherance of the scheme. “Nothing more is required.” As for money laundering, a defendant need not be physically present in the United States; acting electronically is sufficient. The wire transfers to and from a U.S. bank conferred jurisdiction over both offenses. Jurisdiction is proper in a forfeiture if the court has jurisdiction over the underlying offenses. U.S. v. Approximately $25,829,681.80 in Funds, 1999 WL 1080370 (S.D. N.Y. 1999) (not reported in F.Supp.).�xe "U.S. v. Approximately $25,829,681.80 in Funds, 1999 WL 1080370 (S.D. N.Y. 1999) (not reported in F.Supp.)."�





New York District Court finds published regulations do not give constructive notice of currency reporting requirement. (170) The claimant failed to file a Currency and Monetary Instrument Report (CMIR) for $359,000 in cash he was carrying when he attempted to cross the U.S. border into Canada. The government seized the cash and commenced civil forfeiture proceedings pursuant to 31 U.S.C. §§5316(a) and 5317(b). The district court denied the forfeiture because the government failed to prove that the claimant had actual knowledge of the currency reporting requirements at the time he crossed the border. On appeal, the Second Circuit held that the government need not prove actual knowledge; due process requirements would be met by a showing a “probability of such knowledge.” Never�theless, on remand, the district court concluded that the government could not meet even this standard. The claimant was an unsophisticated Italian immigrant whose prior border crossing experiences would not have made him aware of a currency reporting requirement. The court also held that mere publication of currency reporting regulations in the Federal Register did not constitute constructive notice to the claimant. Accordingly, the district court dismissed the forfeiture action. U.S. v. $359,500, 25 F.Supp.2d 140 (W.D.N.Y. 1998).�xe "U.S. v. $359,500, 25 F.Supp.2d 140 (W.D.N.Y. 1998)."�


Texas District Court rules lease rights not forfeitable due to lack of nexus with money laundering activity. (170) A Jury convicted defendants of insurance fraud and money laundering, and returned a special verdict finding criminally forfeitable defendants’ lease rights to property on which their marina and resort stood. The district court granted defendants’ motion to set aside the portion of the verdict forfeiting the lease rights on the ground that the government failed to establish an adequate nexus between the lease rights and the money laundering activity which rendered the rights forfeitable under 18 U.S.C. §982. The underlying offenses were a scheme to defraud the government by making false statements to collect tornado insurance claims on the resort property and laundering the proceeds of the insurance fraud through various bank accounts. The district court held that the leasehold interest may have been essential to the fraud scheme, but had an insufficient nexus to the money laundering to merit forfeiture. U.S. v. Loe, 49 F.Supp.2d 514 (E.D. Tex. 1999).





Virginia District Court holds that pension plan benefits assigned to spouse in divorce decree are not forfeitable, but IRA is. (170) Norton, a physician, was convicted of offenses relating to his dealings with a local hospital, and the indictment sought 18 U.S.C. Section 1956 money laundering forfeiture of $4.5 million. He waived jury determination of the forfeiture count, and the parties agreed to let the court later determine all forfeiture matters. At sentencing, the government did not request the forfeiture of any specific property, but asked for a money judgment. The court ordered the forfeiture of $800,500 as part of his sentence. The physician and his wife were divorced following his appeal and re-sentencing. The ex-wife then challenged the forfeiture of her ex-husband’s pension plan benefits under ERISA and her state law marital rights in the property. The Western District of Virginia district court found that the anti-alienation provisions of federal law protect the pension plan benefits from forfeiture, but IRA account was property forfeited to the government. U.S. v. Norton, 2002 WL 3139138 (W.D.Va 2002).


